Jefferson County Civic Facility Development Corporation
800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800
Watertown, New York 13601
Telephone: (315) 782-5865 or (800) 553-4111 Facsimile (315) 782-7915

Notice of Board Meeting

Date: October 21, 2021

To: John Jennings
David Converse
W. Edward Walldroff

Paul Warneck
William Johnson
Lisa L’Huillier
From: Chairman Robert Aliasso
Re: Notice of Board of Directors Meeting

The Jefferson County Civic Facility Development Corporation will hold their board meeting on
Thursday, November 4, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. in the board room at 800 Starbuck Avenue,

Watertown, NY.

The live stream link will be available at www.jcida.com.

Please confirm your attendance with Peggy Sampson pssampson@jcida.com at your earliest
convenience.

pss

c! David Zembiec
Marshall Weir
Lyle V. Eaton
Kent Burto
Christine Powers
Greg Gardner
Rob Aiken
Justin Miller, Esq.
Media



Jefferson County Civic Facility Development Corporation
800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800
Watertown, New York 13601
Telephone: (315) 782-5865 or (800) 553-4111 Facsimile (315) 782-7915

JCCFDC BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Thursday, November 4, 2021 - 9 a.m.

I Call to Order
1L Minutes — October 7, 2021
III.  Treasurer’s Report — October 31, 2021
IV.  Committee Reports

a. Audit Committee

b. Governance Committee

i. Resolution No. 11.04.2021.01 for Annual Internal Policy and
Procedure Review

ii. Committee Structure
iii. Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

V. Unfinished Business
VI. New Business

VII. Adjournment



Jefferson County Civic Facility Development Corporation

Board Meeting Minutes B@ﬁ\ ﬁw

October 7, 2021

The Jefferson County Civic Facility Development Corporation held their board meeting on Thursday,
October 7, 2021 in the board room at 800 Starbuck Avenue, Watertown, NY.

Present: David Converse, Chair, W. Edward Walldroff, Paul Warneck, Lisa L’Huillier, Robert E.

Aliasso, Ir.
Zoom: William Johnson

Excused: John Jennings

Absent: None

Also Present: David Zembiec, Lyle Eaton, Peggy Sampson, Craig Fox from the Watertown Daily Times
Zoom: Marshall Weir

IL

III.

VL

VIL

Call to Order: Mr. Converse called the meeting to order at 9:51 a.m.

Minutes: Minutes of the regular meeting held September 9, 2021 were presented. A motion to
approve the minutes as presented was made by Mr. Aliasso, seconded by Ms. L Huillier. Allin
favor. Carried.

Treasurer’s Report: Mr. Aliasso reviewed the financials for the income statement and balance
sheet for the period ending September 30, 2021. A motion was made by Mr. Aliasso to accept
the financial report as presented, seconded by Mr. Walldroff. All in favor, Carried.

Committee Reports:

a. Nominating Committee — Ms. L’Huillier said the nominating committee is proposing
the following slate of officers: Chairman — Robert Aliasso, Vice Chairman — John
Jennings, Treasurer — Paul Warneck, and Secretary — W. Edward Walldroff.

A motion was made by Ms. L’Huillier to approve the proposed slate of officers, seconded
by Mr. Johnson. All in favor. Carried.

Authorized Signer — A motion was made by Ms. L’Huillier to approve keeping Mr.
Converse as an authorized signer for the Corporation, seconded by Mr. Johnson. All in
favor. Carried.

Unfinished Business: Mr. Zembiec reported that the Samaritan Senior Village reissuance bond
closed on October 1% and that we received our fee.

New Business: None.

Adjournment: With no further business before the board, a motion to adjourn was made by Mr.
Aliasso, seconded by Mr. Warneck. All in favor. The meeting adjourned at 9:54 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,
P



Revenues

Fee Income

Interest Income

Other Income

Finance Charge Income
Shipping Charges Reimbursed
Fee Discounts

Total Revenues

Cost of Sales
Cost of Sales
Cost of Sales-Salaries and Wag

Total Cost of Sales
Gross Profit

Expenses

Advertising Expense

Bad Debt Expense

Bank Charges

Depreciation Expense

Dues and Subscriptions Exp
Insurance Expense

Interest Expense

Legal and Professional Expense
Licenses Expense
Maintenance Expense

Meals and Entertainment Exp
Office Expense

Postage Expense

Rent or Lease Expense
Repairs Expense

Supplies Expense

Telephone Expense

Travel Expense

Wages Expense

Utilities Expense

Other Expense

Transfer to JCIDA

Purchase Disc-Expense Items
Gain/Loss on Sale of Assets

Total Expenses

Net Income

Income Statement

Current Month

JEFF CO CIVIC FACILITY DEV CORP
For the One Month Ending October 31, 2021

Year to Date

56,669.59 100.00 § 56,669.59
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
56,669.59 100.00 56,669.59
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
56,669.59 100.00 56,669.59
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
56,669.59 100,00 § 56,669.59

For Managemer“4‘rposcs Only

100.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

100.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

100.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

100.00

Page: 1



Current Assets

Regular Checking Account
Accounts Receivable

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment

Total Property and Equipment
Other Assets

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities

Total Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Capital

Retained Earnings

Net Income

Total Capital

Total Liabilities & Capital

JEFF CO CIVIC FACILITY DEV CORP
Balance Sheet

October 31, 2021
ASSETS

77,986.22
1,500.00

79,486.22

0.00

0.00

h 79,486.22

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

0.00

0.00

0.00
22.816.63
56,669.59

79,486.22

$ 79,486.22

Unaudited - For Mana,:5 “znt Purposes Only



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
(Jefferson County Civic Facility Development Corporation)
Audit Committee Meeting Minutes

October 19, 2021

The Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (Jefferson County Civic Facility Development
Corporation) held an audit committee meeting on Tuesday, October 19, 2021 in the board room, 800
Starbuck Avenue, Watertown, NY.

Present: John Jennings, Chair, Robert Aliasso

Also Present: David Zembiec, Lyle Eaton, Peggy Sampson, Marshall Weir, Liz Bush and Andrew
Swords from Bowers & Company

Excused: Paul Warneck

Il

Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 8:25 a.m.
Engage Audit Firm:

Mr. Jennings indicated that the purpose of the pre-audit meeting is to engage Bowers & Company
to complete the 2020-2021 audit.

Ms. Bush asked if there was any concerns or litigation; no one was aware of any. Ms. Bush
asked if there were any questionable/problem loans. Mr. Eaton said no and noted that the bad
debt allowance remained the same. Ms. Bush asked if there were any bankruptcies. Mr. Eaton
said no.

Ms. Bush asked if there has been any activity at the Airport Park project. Mr. Eaton indicated that
no money has been expended. Ms. Bush said to keep in mind that the threshold for a single
audit is $750,000 in federal money. Mr. Zembiec said it may occur next year between the Airport
and YMCA projects. Mr. Zembiec mentioned the over $4 million request to Jefferson County for
part of the American Recover Plan funds for childcare training, helping landlords impacted by the
pandemic, an innovation fund for businesses, the PCB remediation at 146 Arsenal Street, and the
sewer project at the Airport Park.

Ms. Bush asked if any new loans were issued. Mr. Eaton said there were a few including the $2
million loan to the IDA for the remediation project at 146 Arsenal Street. Ms. Bush asked if there
were any loan commitments at the end of the year. Mr. Eaton said no.

The audit has been scheduled to start during the week of October 25, 2021. Liz Bush will be the
lead partner (fourth year). Ms. Bush presented the engagement letter. The fee is $10,900 plus
$500 for information returns. It was noted that the JCIDA audit will include the JCCFDC. Mr.
Eaton will provide Ms. Bush with a list of the loan balances for the loan confirmations.

A motion was made by Mr. Aliasso to recommend approval of the engagement letter for the fiscal
year ending 9/30/21 to the full board of directors, seconded by Mr. Jennings. All in favor.

Ms. Bush said the anticipated fee for the stub period (October 1, 2021 — December 31, 2021) is
$6,500 plus $400 for information returns. Mr. Aliasso said the board will need to amend the
bylaws when they approve the resolution to change the fiscal year and noted that we may need to
approve/amend the budget to match up with the stub period.

Adjournment: With no further business before the committee, 2 motion to adjourn was made by
Mr. Aliasso, seconded by Mr. Jennings. The meeting adjourned at 8:43 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,



Jefferson County Civic Facility Development Corporation
Governance Committee Meeting Minutes
October 15, 2021

The JCCFDC held a governance committee meeting in the board room at 800 Starbuck Avenue,
Watertown, NY on Friday, October 15, 2021.

Present: W. Edward Walldroff, William Johnson
Zoom: Paul Warneck

Excused: None

Absent: None

Also Present: David Zembiec, Peggy Sampson, Marshall Weir

.

VL.

Call to Order: Mr. Walldroff called the meeting to order at 8:38 a.m.

Proposed Bylaws — Committee members reviewed the proposed bylaws. Mr. Walldroff pointed
out that the Executive Committee has been defined and includes adding the immediate past
chairman to the committee as suggested at the last board meeting.

A motion was made by Mr. Warneck to move the proposed bylaws to the full board of directors,
seconded by Mr. Johnson. Allin favor.

Review Mission Statement/Performance Measurements — Committee members reviewed the
current mission statement. There were no updates/changes made. Staff is currently gathering
the results from the previous year's goals and will update the performance measurement form

within the next month.

Review Current/Proposed Policies and Procedures - It was noted that there were no changes
made to the Disposition of Real Property Guidelines nor the Procurement Policy. Mr. Zembiec
said that the Financial Internal Controls were updated to reflect a title change for a staff member
(Office Assistant to Finance Assistant).

After review and discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Warneck to recommend approval of the
proposed Investment Policy with Financial Internal Controls to the full board of directors,
seconded by Mr. Johnson. All in favor.

Annual Confidential Board Evaluations: Committee members reviewed the summary results of
confidential evaluation of board performance. Mr. Walldroff said the results are favorable. Mr.
Warneck commented on #5 (The Board sets clear and measurable performance goals for the
Authority that contribute to accomplishing its mission) by saying that it may be scored differently if
there was more going on. Mr. Zembiec indicated that it is hard to set clear and specific goals for
economic development because so much of the economic environment is beyond our control,

After review and discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Johnson to send the results to the full
board of directors, seconded by Mr. Warneck. All in favor.

Adjournment: With no further business before the committee, a motion to adjourn the meeting
was made by Mr. Warneck, seconded by Mr. Johnson. The meeting adjourned at 8:47 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

P Bampasi



JEFFERSON COUNTY CIVIC FACILITY DEVELOPMENT CORP.
Resolution Number 11.04.2021.01
For Annual Internal Policy and Procedure Review

WHEREAS, on October 15, 2021 the JCCFDC Governance Committee met to
review the listed policies and procedures. After review and discussion, they
recommended the following internal policies for the Board’s consideration:

- Proposed Bylaws

- Mission Statement & Performance Measurements
- Proposed Audit and Finance Committee Charter

- Disposition of Real Property Guidelines

- Proposed Investment Policy with Internal Controls
- Procurement Policy

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the
Jefferson County Civic Facility Development Corporation that it herein approves the
above internal policies and procedures as set forth in this Resolution, and be it further,

RESOLVED, that the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary, and/or Chief
Executive Officer are authorized and directed to execute any and all documents necessary
to carry out the purposes of this Resolution.

This resolution shall take effect immediately.

W. Edward Walldroff
Secretary



BY-LAWS

OF

JEFFERSON COUNTY CIVIC FACILITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Adopted June 2, 2011
Reviewed-October1-2020Proposed 11/4/21




BY-LAWS
OF
JEFFERSON COUNTY CIVIC FACILITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

ARTICLE I - THE CORPORATION

SECTION 1. - NAME.

The Corporation shall be known as “JEFFERSON COUNTY CIVIC FACILITY
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION? (hereinafter, the “Corporation™).

SECTION 2. - OFFICES.
The principal office of the Corporation shall be located in Jefferson County, New York

(the “County”). The Corporation may also have offices at such other places within the State of
New York as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine or the activities of the

Corporation may require.
SECTION 3. - PURPOSES.
The Corporation shall have such purposes as are now or hereafter set forth in its

Certificate of Incorporation.

ARTICLE II - MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1. - COMPOSITION OF MEMBERSHIP.

The sole Member of the Corporation shall be the County, acting by and through the Chair
of its Board of Legislators, ex officio. The Corporation shall be managed by its Board of
Directors in accordance with the provisions contained herein.

SECTION 2. - RIGHTS AND POWERS OF THE MEMBERS.

The Members shall have and exercise all the rights and powers of corporate membership
created by the laws of the State of New York, the Certificate of Incorporation and the By-Laws

of the Corporation.

-10-



SECTION 3. - ANNUAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS

The Members shall hold an annual meeting of the Members within six months after the
end of each fiscal year at a convenient time and place designated by the Members. At the annual
meeting, the Members shall appoint Directors pursuant to Article III hereof for positions where a
new directorship is created or the term of a Director has expired, receive the annual report and
transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

SECTION 4. - ANNUAL REPORT TO THE MEMBERS.

At the annual meeting of the Members, the Directors or designated officer of the
Corporation shall present an annual report showing in appropriate detail the following
information:

(a) A complete audited financial statement of the Corporation for the fiscal year
immediately preceding the date of the report showing the assets and liabilities, principal changes
in assets and liabilities, revenue, receipts, expenses and disbursements of the Corporation; and

(b) A summary of the activities of the Corporation during the preceding year.
The annual report shall be filed with the minutes of the annual meeting.
SECTION 5. - SPECIAL MEETINGS OF THE MEMBERS.

Special meetings of the Members may be called at any time by a majority of the
Members and shall be called by the Secretary within fourteen (14) days of receipt of a written
request from a majority of the Members. Such request shall state the purpose or purposes for the
proposed meeting. Business transacted at a special meeting shall be confined to the purposes
stated in the notice of such special meeting; provided, however, if by unanimous consent all of
the Members present at such meeting elect to transact business not previously described in the
aforementioned notice, then the Corporation may transact such other business.

SECTION 6. - PLACE OF MEETINGS; ORGANIZATION

All membership meetings shall be held at the principal office of the Corporation or at
such other convenient location as may be determined by the Members. At each membership
meeting, the Members shall select, by a vote of a majority of Members present, a Member to
preside. The Secretary, or, in his or her absence, a person chosen by the Members, shall keep
complete and accurate minutes of the meeting.

SECTION 7. - NOTICE OF MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS; WAIVERS

(a)  Notice of each membership meeting shall state the purpose or purposes for which
the meeting is called, the place, date and time of the meeting and, unless it is the annual meeting,
shall indicate that it is being issued by or at the direction of the person or persons calling the
meeting. Such notice shall be given either personally or by mail to each Member not less than

"



ten (10) nor more than fifty (50) days before the date of the meeting. If mailed, the notice is
given when deposited in the United States mail, with postage thereon prepaid, directed to a
Member at his or her address as it appears on the record of Members or, if he or she shall have
filed with the Secretary a written request that notices be mailed to some other address, then
directed to such other address.

(b) Formal notice of meeting need not be given to a Member if he or she executes a
waiver of notice, either before or after the meeting. The attendance of a Member at a meeting,
without protesting prior to the conclusion of the meeting the lack of notice of such meeting, shall
constitute a waiver of notice.

SECTION 8. - QUORUM OF MEMBERS

(a) The presence of at least a majority of the Members shall constitute a quorum for
the transaction of business at any annual or special membership meeting.

(b) A majority of the Members present at a meeting, whether or not a quorum is
present, may adjourn any membership meeting to another time and place. Notice of the time and
place of holding an adjourned meeting need not be given to absent Members if the time and
place is announced at the meeting adjourned.

SECTION 9. - ACTION BY THE MEMBERS

()  Each Member shall be entitled to one vote on each matter properly submitted to
the Members for action at any meeting of the Members. Unless otherwise required by law or
these By-Laws, the vote of a majority of Members present at the time of a vote at a duly
convened meeting, provided a quorum is then present, shall be the act of the Members.

(b) Every Member entitled to vote at a meeting of Members may authorize another
person or persons to act for him or her by proxy. Every proxy must be signed by the Member or
the Member’s attorney-in-fact. No proxy shall be valid after the expiration of eleven (11)
months from the date thereof unless otherwise provided in the proxy. Every proxy shall be
revocable at the pleasure of the Member executing it, except as otherwise provided by law.

SECTION 10. - PROPERTY RIGHTS OF MEMBERS

The Members shall not have any rights or interests in or to the property or assets of the
Corporation.

o



ARTICLE III - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. - POWER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

The Corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors, which shall establish all
general policies governing its operations.

SECTION 2. - NUMBER, ELECTION AND TERM OF DIRECTORS.

(a) The number of Directors shall be seven as established by a resolution adopted by
the Members. The Directors shall be appointed by the Members, the initial sole Member shall be
the County, acting by and through the Chair of the Board of Legislators of the County. The
Directors shall exercise all rights of Directors as described herein and in the Certificate of
Incorporation or any applicable resolution. Any subsequent increase or decrease in the size of
the Board of Directors will require the approval of the Members. As used in these By-laws, “the
entire Board of Directors” means the total number of Directors that the Corporation would have
if there were no vacancies on the Board.

(b)  All Directors shall serve at the pleasure of the Members.

(c) The Chief Executive Officer, as defined herein, may serve on the Board of
Directors of the Corporation; provided, however, in such event, shall not participate in
determining the level of compensation or reimbursement, or time and attendance rules for the
position of Chief Executive Officer.

(d)  All Directors of the Board shall participate in training approved by the State of
New York regarding their legal, fiduciary, financial and ethical responsibilities as Directors
within one (1) year of appointment to the Board. Thereafter, the Directors shall participate in
such continuing training as may be required to remain informed of best practices, regulatory and
statutory changes relating to the effective oversight of the management and financial activities of
the Corporation and the adhere to the highest standards of responsible governance.

(e) As soon as practicable and in compliance with Section 2825 of the Public
Authorities Law, the majority of the Directors shall be Independent Directors, as such term is
defined in paragraph (g) below.

®) Independence. For the purposes of these By-Laws, an Independent Director
means any person who:

(i) i1s not, and in the past two (2) years has not been, employed by the
Corporation or another corporate body having the same ownership and control of the
Corporation in an executive capacity;

(ii)  is not, and in the past two (2) years has not been, employed by an entity
that received remuneration valued at more than fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) for

-13-



goods and services provided to the Corporation or received any other form of financial
assistance valued at more than fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) from the
Corporation,

(iif)  is not a relative of an executive officer or employee in an executive
position of the Corporation or another corporate body having the same ownership and
control of the Corporation; and

(iv)  is not, and in the past two (2) years has not been, a lobbyist registered
under a state or local law and paid by a client to influence the management decisions,
contract awards, rate determinations or any other similar actions of the Corporation or
another corporate body having the same ownership and control of the Corporation.

(g)  Board Offices. A Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Treasurer and Secretary shall
be elected from among the Directors of the Board at the organizational meeting and subsequent
annual meetings of the Board of Directors. The term of office for the Chairperson, Vice-
Chairperson, Treasurer and Secretary shall extend for one year after his or her election and until
a successor is elected. The Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Treasurer and Secretary shall be
eligible to serve an unlimited number of consecutive terms.

SECTION 3. - RESIGNATIONS AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS.

(a) Any Director of the Corporation may resign at any time by giving written notice
to the other Directors or to the Chairman or Chief Executive Officer, or the Secretary. Such
resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein or, if no time is specified, then on
delivery. Acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

(b)  Any Director may be removed from the Board with or without cause by the
Members or for cause by vote of a majority of the Directors provided there is a quorum of not
less than a majority of the entire Board present.

SECTION 4. - NEWLY CREATED DIRECTORSHIPS AND VACANCIES.

Newly created directorships resulting from an increase in the number of Directors shall
be filled as described in the resolution approving such increase. Newly created directorships
resulting from any vacancies occurring for any reason shall be filled by the Members. In each
case, such appointments shall be made as soon as practicable but in no event later than sixty (60)
days after the increase or vacancy occurs. A Director appointed to fill a vacancy caused by
resignation, death, disability or removal shall hold office for the unexpired term of his or her
predecessor in office and until a successor is appointed and takes office.

SECTION 5. - ANNUAL MEETING.

The annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held after the annual meeting of
the Members of the Corporation described in Article II, Section 3 above at a convenient time and

=14 -



location designated by the Board. Written notice of the annual meeting shall be mailed or
delivered to each Director of the Corporation prior to the meeting.

SECTION 6. - ANNUAL REPORT.

A Director designated by the Members or the Chief Executive Officer and the Treasurer
shall present at the annual meeting of the Board of Directors a copy of the annual report
described in Article II, Section 4 above.

SECTION 7. - SPECIAL MEETINGS AND NOTICE.

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by a majority of
Directors or by the Chief Executive Officer or any other officer of the Corporation. Written
notice shall be mailed or delivered to each Director of the Corporation prior to the meeting. Said
notice shall state the purposes, time and place of the special meeting and that no business other
than that specified in the notice may be transacted; provided, however, if by unanimous consent
all of the Directors present at such meeting elect to transact business not previously described in
the aforementioned notice, then the Directors may transact such other business.

SECTION 8. - WAIVERS OF NOTICE.

Notice of a meeting need not be given to any Director who submits a signed waiver of
notice whether before or after the meeting, or who attends the meeting without protesting, prior
thereto or at its commencement, the lack of notice to him or her.

SECTION 9. - PLACE OF MEETINGS.

The Board of Directors may hold its meetings at such place or places within or outside
the State of New York as the Directors may from time to time by resolution determine.

SECTION 10. - OPEN MEETINGS

The Corporation is subject to Open Meetings Law, the Corporation shall comply with the
Open Meetings Law of the State of New York, as set forth within Article 7 of the Public Officers

Law.
SECTION 11. - FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

The Corporation is subject to Freedom of Information Law, the Corporation shall comply
with the Freedom of Information Law of the State of New York, as set forth within Article 6 of

the Public Officers Law.

15-



SECTION 12. - PUBLIC AUTHORITIES ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

The Corporation is subject to the Public Authorities Accountability Act of 2005, as
amended by Chapter 506 of the Laws of 2009 (collectively, the “PAAA™) and shall comply with
the PAAA, as set forth within the New York State Public Authorities Law.

SECTION 13. - STATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY REVIEW ACT

Upon the determination of the Board of Directors to do business within the State of New
York, the Corporation shall comply with the State Environmental Quality Review Act, as set
forth within Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law.

SECTION 14. - QUORUM AND ADJOURNED MEETINGS.

(a) A majority of the entire Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business at meetings of the Board. When a quorum is once present to organize a
meeting, it shall not be broken by the subsequent withdrawal of any Director(s).

(b) A majority of the Directors present, whether or not a quorum is present, may
adjourn any Board meeting to another time and place. If a quorum is present at the adjourned
meeting, any business may be transacted that might have been transacted on the original date of
the meeting. Notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to all Directors.

SECTION 15. - ACTION BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

Any corporate action to be taken by the Board of Directors means action at a meeting of
the Board. Each Director shall have one vote regarding any corporate action to be taken by the
Board. Except as otherwise provided by law or these By-Laws, the vote of a majority of the
Directors present at the time of the vote at a duly convened meeting at which a quorum is present
shall be the act of the Board of Directors. All references to actions of the Board of Directors
herein and in the Certificate of Incorporation shall mean the affirmative vote of a majority of the
Directors present at the time of the vote at a duly convened meeting at which a quorum is
present.

SECTION 16. - ORGANIZATION.
At each meeting of the Board of Directors, the Chairperson, or, in his or her absence, the

Vice-Chairperson shall preside. The Secretary, or, in his or her absence, a person chosen by a
majority of the Directors present, shall keep complete and accurate minutes of the meeting.

SECTION 17. - ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS.

Attendance at each meeting of the Board shall be recorded by the Secretary or the
designated Director in the minutes thereof.

-16-



SECTION 18. - COMPENSATION.

The Directors shall serve in their capacity as Directors of the Jefferson County Civic
Facility Development Corporation without compensation. All Directors may be reimbursed for
reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of corporate duties.

SECTION 19. - ANNUAL INDEPENDENT AUDIT.

The Audit Committee shall present to the Board upon its completion, the annual
independent audit report performed in accordance with the requirements of the PAAA and
generally accepted government auditing standards certified by a firm of independent public
accountants. The certified independent public accounting firm that performs the annual
independent audit shall timely report to the Audit Committee the following:

(i) the assets and liabilities, including the status of reserve, depreciation, special or
other funds including the receipts and payments of such funds, of the Corporation as of the end
of the fiscal year;

(i)  the principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust funds, during said
fiscal period,;

(iii)  the revenue or receipts of the Corporation, both unrestricted and restricted, to
particular purposes during said fiscal period;

(iv)  the expenses or disbursements of the Corporation for both general and restricted
purposes, during said fiscal period; and

(v)  a schedule of the bonds and notes of the Corporation outstanding during said
fiscal period, including all refinancings, calls, refundings, defeasements, and interest rate
exchange or other such agreements, and for any debt issued during the fiscal period, together
with a statement of the amounts redeemed and incurred during such fiscal period as a part of a
schedule of debt issuance that include the date of issuance, term, amount, interest rate, means of
repayment and cost of issuance.

Furthermore, the certified independent public accounting firm that performs the annual
independent audit shall timely report to the Audit Committee the following:

(i) all critical accounting policies and practices to be used,;
(i)  all alternative treatments of financial information within generally accepted
accounting principals that have been discussed with the management of the Corporation,

ramifications of the use of such alternative disclosures and treatments, and the treatment
preferred by the certified independent public accounting firm;

(i)  other material written communications between the certified independent public
accounting firm and the management of the Corporation, such as the management letter along

-



with management’s response or plan of corrective action, material corrections identified or
schedule of unadjusted differences, where applicable.

SECTION 20. - PROPERTY RIGHTS.

No Director of the corporation shall, by reason of that position, have any rights to or
interest in the property or assets of the Corporation.

ARTICLE IV - COMMITTEES

SECTION 1. - STANDING COMMITTEES.

(a) The Standing Committees of the Board shall be as described in subparagraph (b)
below. Except as otherwise provided by these By-Laws, each Standing Committee shall consist
of at least three Directors. No Standing Committee shall have authority as to the following

matters:
(1) The submission to the Members of any action requiring its approval,
(ii)  The filling of vacancies on the Board of Directors or any committee;

(iii) The amendment or repeal of these By-Laws or the adoption of new By-
Laws; or

(iv)  The amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Board which by its
terms is not so amendable or repealable.

(b) Until changed by amendment of these By-Laws, the Corporation shall have the
following Committees:

Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall consist of the officers of the

Corporation and the immediate past chairman. The Executive Committee shall exercise the

powers of the Board of Directors in the interim between meetings of the directors with general

power to discharge the duties of the Board of Directors except as such power from time to time
may be limited by the Board.

Audit and Finance Committee. There shall be an Audit and Finance Committee
consisting entirely of Independent members, who shall be elected by a plurality of the votes cast
by the Directors of the Corporation at each annual meeting of the Board and shall serve until the
next annual meeting. To the extent practicable, members of the Audit and Finance Committee
should be familiar with corporate financial and accounting practices. The Audit and Finance
Committee shall recommend to the Board the hiring of a certified independent accounting firm in
compliance with the PAAA to conduct the annual independent audit, and establish the
compensation to be paid to the accounting firm and provide direct oversight of the performance

18-



of the annual independent audit. The Audit and Finance Committee shall have the responsibility
to review proposals for the issuance of debt by the Corporation and its subsidiaries, if any, and
make recommendations.

Governance Committee. There shall be a Governance Committee consisting entirely of
Independent members, who shall be elected by a plurality of the votes cast by the Directors of
the Corporation at each annual meeting of the Directors and shall serve until the next annual
meeting. The Governance Committee shall keep the Board informed of current best governance
practices, review corporate governance trends, update the Corporation’s corporate governance
principles, and advise the Members and Directors on the skills and experience required of
potential Directors.

SECTION 2. - SPECIAL COMMITTEES.

The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of the entire Board of
Directors, may create Special Committees, which shall have only the powers specifically
delegated to them and shall in no case have powers which are not authorized for Standing
Committees. The members of Special Committees shall be appointed by a plurality of the votes
cast by the Directors of the Corporation.

SECTION 3. - MEETINGS.

Meetings of committees shall be held at such times and places as shall be fixed by the
respective committee chairpersons, or by vote of a majority of all of the members of the
committee. Written notice shall be mailed (via regular mail or electronic mail) or delivered to all
members of the committee prior to each meeting. Written minutes of the proceedings shall be
kept at all committee meetings and shall be submitted at the next meeting of the Board. The
Chief Executive Officer and Chairperson of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, or their
respective designees, may attend all committee meetings, but will not possess any voting rights
unless otherwise granted by said committees.

SECTION 4. - QUORUM.

Unless otherwise provided by resolution of the Board of Directors, a majority of all of the
members of a committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

SECTION 5. - MANNER OF ACTING.

Any corporate action to be taken by a committee shall mean such action to be taken at a
meeting of the committee. Action by a committee shall be taken by majority vote at a meeting.

G



ARTICLE V - OFFICERS

SECTION 1. — CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER;-CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER; OTHER
OFFICERS.

The Corporation may have a Chief Executive Officer, a Chief Financial Officer, and a
Secretary and other officers and assistant officers as the Board of Directors may determine. The
offices of Chief Executive Officer and Secretary shall not be held by the same person. The
officers shall have such duties as may be prescribed by these By-Laws and the Board of
 Directors.

SECTION 2. - TERMS OF OFFICERS.

The officers shall be appointed by the Directors at its annual meeting. Unless a shorter
term is provided in the resolution of the Board appointing such officer, the term of office of each
officer shall extend for one year after his or her appointment and until a successor is appointed
and qualified. Officers shall be eligible to serve an unlimited number of consecutive terms.

SECTION 3. - ADDITIONAL OFFICERS.

Additional officers may be appointed for such period, have such authority and perform
such duties, either in an administrative or subordinate capacity, as the Board of Directors may
from time to time determine. Such positions may include an Acting Chief Financial Officer and
Acting Secretary, and any other position established by the Board of Directors from time to time.

SECTION 4. - REMOVAL OF OFFICERS.

Any officer may be removed by majority vote of the Directors, with or without cause, at
any time, provided there is a quorum of not less than a majority of the entire Board of Directors
present at the meeting at which such action is taken.

SECTION 5. - RESIGNATION.

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors, the
Chief Executive Officer or the Secretary; provided, however, the Chief Executive Officer must
provide written notice of its intent to resign to the Board of Directors and the Secretary must
provide written notice of its intent to resign to the Chairperson or the Board of Directors. Any
such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, or, if no time is specified, then on
delivery. Acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

SECTION 6. - VACANCIES.

A vacancy in any office of the Corporation shall be filled by the majority vote of the
entire Board of Directors.

-20-



SECTION 7. -CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER.

The Board of Directors shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer by resolution, which
resolution shall set the Chief Executive Officer’s annual compensation. The Chief Executive
Officer shall generally supervise all affairs of the Corporation. The Chief Executive Officer
shall perform such other duties as may be assigned to him or her from time to time by the Board
of Directors.

SECTION 8. - SECRETARY.

It shall be the duty of the Acting Secretary to supervise the preparation of minutes of all
meetings of the Members and the Board of Directors and its committees, the giving of all notices
required to be given by the Corporation, and the keeping of a current list of the Members of the
Corporation, Directors and officers and their residence addresses. The Acting Secretary shall be
responsible for supervising the preparation and maintenance of the books and records of the
Corporation. The Acting Secretary shall attend to such correspondence as may be assigned to
him or her and perform all the duties customarily incidental to that office and such other duties
as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors or the Chief Executive Officer. From
time to time, the Board of Directors may employ or contract with an appointed Acting Secretary
to whom the Board of Directors may designate certain duties of the Secretary and other such
duties as may be assigned to him or her.

SECTION 9. - TREASURER/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER.

The Board of Directors shall appoint the Chief Financial Officer by resolution, which
resolution shall set the Chief Financial Officer’s annual compensation. It shall be the duty of the
Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation, with oversight by the Treasurer, to oversee the
financial affairs of the Corporation, report at each regular meeting of the Board of Directors, and
participate in preparing the annual report of the Corporation and the filing of all required tax
returns and other regulatory reports. The Chief Financial Officer shall perform such other duties
as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer or the Chief Executive

Officer.

SECTION 10. — JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY -
PERSONNEL.

The Corporation may use the agents, employees and facilities of the County and/or the
Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency (“JCIDA™) to perform any or all of its
functions as described in the Certificate of Incorporation and these By-Laws. In such event, the
Corporation will, by resolution, enter into a contract with the County and/or JCIDA providing
the terms upon which the County and/or JCIDA will provide the use of its agents, employees and
facilities to the Corporation and the compensation, if any, that the Corporation shall pay to the
County and/or JCIDA for the use by the Corporation of County and/or JCIDA agents, employees
and facilities.

P



ARTICLE VI - CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DRAFTS AND BANK ACCOUNTS
SECTION 1. - EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS.

The Board of Directors may on its own, except as these By-Laws otherwise provide, or
may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, employee or employees, in the name of
and on behalf of the Corporation, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any
instrument, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances; but, unless so
authorized by the Board of Directors, or expressly authorized by these By-Laws, no officer,
agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or
engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable pecuniarily in any amount for any

purpose.
SECTION 2. - LOANS.

No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Corporation unless specifically authorized
by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 3. - CHECKS, DRAFTS, ETC.

All checks, drafts and other orders for the payment of money out of the funds of the
Corporation, and all notes or other evidences of indebtedness of the Corporation, must be signed
on behalf of the Corporation by two of following persons: the Chief Executive Officer, the
Treasurer or the Chairperson of the Board.

SECTION 4. - DEPOSITS.

All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time
to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the
Treasurer may recommend and the Board of Directors approves.

SECTION 5. - INVESTMENTS.
The Board of Directors may authorize the Corporation to contract with an investment

advisor and custodian to manage its investments in accordance with an investment policy
established by the Board.

T8



ARTICLE VII - GENERAL

SECTION 1. - SEAL.

The corporate seal shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Corporation, the year of
its organization, and the words “Corporate Seal, New York.” The seal may be used by causing it
or a facsimile thereof to be impressed or affixed or otherwise reproduced.

SECTION 2. - BOOKS AND RECORDS.

There shall be kept by the Corporation (1) correct and complete books and
records of account, (2) minutes and statements of written action by the Members, (3) minutes of
the proceedings of the Board of Directors and its committees, (4) a current list of the Members,
Directors and officers of the Corporation and their residence addresses, (5) a copy of the
Certificate of Incorporation, and (6) a copy of these By-Laws. The foregoing items shall be
subject to inspection and/or audit at any time by or at the direction of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 3. - INDEMNIFICATION.

The Corporation shall indemnify each Member, each Director, each officer, and, to the
extent authorized by the Board of Directors, each other person authorized to act for the
Corporation or on its behalf, to the full extent to which indemnification is permitted under the

Not-For-Profit Corporation Law.
SECTION 4. - INTERESTED DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS.

The Board of Directors may adopt a policy regarding conflicts of interest which shall
apply to all directors and officers.

SECTION 5. - LOANS TO MEMBERS AND OFFICERS.

The Corporation, either directly or indirectly, including through any subsidiary, is
prohibited from extending or maintaining credit, arranging for the extension of credit or
renewing any extension of credit, in the form of a personal loan to or for any Member, Director,
or Officer, or to any other company, corporation, firm, association or other entity in which one or
more of the Members, Directors or Officers of the Corporation are members, director or officers
or hold a substantial financial interest.

ARTICLE VIII - FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall commence on the first day of October of each
calendar year and end on the last day of September.

5%



ARTICLE IX - RULES OF ORDER AND BYLAW CHANGES

SECTION 1. - RULES OF ORDER.

Meetings of the Members and the Board of Directors and its committees shall be
governed by Robert's Rules of Order, except in cases otherwise provided for by these By-Laws.

SECTION 2. - BY-LAW CHANGES.

These By-Laws may be amended, repealed or adopted only by a majority of the Directors
of the Corporation, or a majority of the Members, whose actions at all times shall supersede

actions by the Directors.

-24-



B B0 b)) A0 [ mmmg
PS4 ] i

JEFFERSON COUNTY CIVIC FACILITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

AUDIT AND FINANCE COMMITTEE CHARTER
Adopted 5/3/2012 — Reviewed10/0120Proposed 11/4/21

1 Purpose

Pursuant to the By-laws of Jefferson County Civic Facility Development Corporation (the
“Corporation”), and in accordance with the Public Authorities Accountability Act of 2005 and
Public Authority Reform Act of 2009, there is established an Audit and Finance Committee of the
Corporation whose purpose shall be to (1) assure that the Corporation’s board fulfills its
responsibilities for the Corporation’s internal and external audit process, the financial reporting
process and the system of risk assessment and internal controls over financial reporting; (2)
provide an avenue of communication between management, the independent auditors, the internal
auditors, and the board of directors; and (3) review proposals for the issuance of debt by the
Corporation and make recommendations regarding such proposals.

Ij. Powers of the Audit and Finance Committee

It shall be the responsibility of the audit and finance committee to:

. Appoint—compensate,—and —oversee—the—werkRecommend the appointment and

compensation of any public accounting firm employed by- the Corporation, _and  provide
oversight of that firm’s service to the Corporation.

. Conduct or authorize investigations into any matters within its scope of responsibility.
. Seek any information it requires from Corporation employees, all of whom should
be directed by the board to cooperate with committee requests.
. Meet with Corporation staff, independent auditors or outside counsel, as
necessary.
. Review proposals for the issuance of debt and make recommendations.
. RetainRecommend, at the Corporation’s expense, the retention of such outside counsel,

experts and other advisors as
the audit committee may deem appropriate.

The Corporation Board will ensure that the Audit and Finance Committee has sufficient
resources to carry out its duties.

III.  Composition of Committee and Selection of Members

The Audit and Finance Committee shall consist of at least three members of the
Corporation Board who are independent as defined in the Public Authorities Accountability Act
of 2005. The Corporation Board will appoint the Audit and Finance Committee members and the
committee chair.

35



JCCFDC Audit and Finance Committee Charter
Page 2

\1‘
§

Audit and Finance Committee members shall be prohibited from being an employee of the
Corporation or an immediate family member of an employee of the Corporation. In addition, audit
and finance committee members shall not engage in any private business transactions with the
Corporation or receive compensation from any private entity that has material business
relationships with the Corporation, or be an immediate family member of an individual that
engages in private business transactions with the Corporation or receives compensation from an
entity that has material business relationships with the Corporation.

Ideally, all members on the Audit and Finance Committee shall possess or obtain a basic
understanding of governmental financial reporting, auditing and debt issuances. The audit and
finance committee shall have access to the services of at least one financial expert, whose name
shall be disclosed in the annual report of the Corporation.

The Audit and Finance Committee’s financial expert should have 1) an understanding of
generally accepted accounting principles and financial statements; 2) experience in preparing or
auditing financial statements of comparable entities; 3) experience in applying such principles in
connection with the accounting for estimates, accruals and reserves; 4) experience with internal
accounting controls, 5) debt issuances and 6.) an understanding of Audit and Finance Committee

functions.
IV.  Meetings

The Audit and Finance Committee will meet a minimum of twice a year, with the
expectation that additional meetings may be required to adequately fulfill all the obligations and
duties outlined in the charter.

Members of the Audit and Finance Committee are expected to attend each committee
meeting, in person or via videoconference. The audit and finance committee may invite other
individuals, such as members of management, auditors or other technical experts to attend
meetings and provide pertinent information, as necessary.

The Audit and Finance Committee will meet with the Corporation’s independent auditor
at least annually to discuss the financial statements of the Corporation.

Meeting agendas will be prepared for every meeting and provided to the audit and finance
committee members along with briefing materials five business days before the scheduled audit
and finance committee meeting. The audit and finance committee will act only on the affirmative
vote of a majority of the members at a meeting. Minutes of these meetings will be recorded.

V. Responsibilities

The Audit and Finance Committee shall have responsibilities related to: (a) the independent
auditor and annual financial statements; (b) the Corporation’s internal auditors; (c) oversight of
management’s internal controls, compliance and risk assessment practices; (d) special

-26-



JCCFDC Audit and Finance Committee Charter
Page 3

investigations and whistleblower policies; and (e) issues related to debt issuance and the financial
practices of the Corporation.

A. Independent Auditors and Financial Statements

The Audit and Finance Committee shall:

. Appeint—eompensate—and—overseeRecommend appointment and compensation of an
mde'pendent auditors retained by the Corporation, and pre-appreveoversee all audit

services provided by the independent auditor.

. Establish procedures for the engagement of the independent auditor to provide permitted
audit services. The Corporation’s independent auditor shall be prohibited from providing
non-audit services unless having received previous written approval from the audit
committee. Non-audit services include tasks that directly support the Corporation’s
operations, such as bookkeeping or other services related to the accounting records or
financial statements of the Corporation, financial information systems design and
implementation, appraisal or valuation services, actuarial services, investment banking
services, and other tasks that may involve performing management functions or making
management decisions.

. Review and approve the Corporation’s audited financial statements, associated
management letter, report on internal controls and all other auditor communications.
. Review significant accounting and reporting issues, including complex or unusual

transactions and management decisions, and recent professional and regulatory
pronouncements, and understand their impact on the financial statements.

. Meet with the independent audit firm on a regular basis to discuss any significant issues
that may have surfaced during the course of the audit.
. Review and discuss any significant risks reported in the independent audit findings and

recommendations and assess the responsiveness and timeliness of management’s follow-
up activities pertaining to the same.
B. Internal Controls, Compliance and Risk Assessment

The Audit and Finance Committee shall:

. Review management’s assessments of the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal
controls and review the report on internal controls by the independent auditor as a part of
the financial audit engagement.

C. Special Investigations

The Audit and Finance Committee shall:

. Ensure that the Corporation has an appropriate confidential mechanism for individuals to
report suspected fraudulent activities, allegations of corruption, fraud, criminal activity,

w2



JCCFDC Audit and Finance Committee Charter

B A TR Page 4
conflicts of interest or abuse by the directors, officers, or employees of the Corporation or
any persons having business dealings with the Corporation or breaches of internal control.

Develop procedures for the receipt, retention, investigation and/or referral of complaints
concerning accounting, internal controls and auditing to the appropriate body.

Request and oversee special investigations as needed and/or refer specific issues to the
appropriate body for further investigation.

D. Other Responsibilities of the Audit and Finance Committee
The Audit and Finance Committee shall:

Review proposals for the issuance of debt and to make recommendations.

Present annually to the Corporation Board a written report of how it has discharged its
duties and met its responsibilities as outlined in the charter.

Obtain any information and training needed to enhance the committee members’
understanding of the role of internal audits and the independent auditor, the risk
management process, internal controls, debt issuances and a certain level of familiarity in
financial reporting standards and processes.

Review the committee’s charter annually, reassess its adequacy, and recommend any
proposed changes to the board of the Corporation. The Audit and Finance Committee
charter will be updated as applicable laws, regulations, accounting and auditing standards
change.

08,



L.

A.

JEFFERSON COUNTY CIVIC FACILITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

INVESTMENT POLICY
Adopted 6/2/2011
Reviewed104/20Proposed 11/4/21

INVESTMENT AND DEPOSIT POLICY

Introduction

1.

Scope — This investment and deposit policy applies to all monies and other financial
resources available for investment and deposit on its own behalf or on behalf of any
other entity or individual.

Objectives — The primary objectives of the Jefferson County Civic Facility
Development Corporation's (the “Corporation”) investment activities are, in
priority order:

a. to conform with all applicable federal, state and other legal requirements
(legal);

b. to adequately safeguard principal (safety);

C. to provide sufficient liquidity to meet all operating requirements (liquidity);
and

d. to obtain a reasonable rate of return (yield).

Prudence — All participants in the investment process and all participants
responsible for depositing the Corporation’s funds shall seek to act responsibly as
custodians of the public trust and shall avoid any transaction that might impair
confidence in the Corporation to govern effectively.

Investments and deposits shall be made with judgment and care, under
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and
intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation,
but for investment, considering the safety of the principal as well as the probable
income to be derived.

All participants involved in the investment process and all participants responsible
for depositing the Corporation’s funds shall refrain from personal business activity
that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program or the deposit
of the Corporation’s funds or which could impair their ability to make impartial
investment decisions.

Diversification — It is the policy of the Corporation to diversify its deposits and
investments by financial institution, by investment instrument, and by maturity
scheduling.

.50 1



JCCFDC Investment Policy

2
5. Internal Controls

a. All moneys collected by an officer or employee of the Corporation shall be
immediately deposited in such depositories and designated by the
Corporation for the receipt of such funds.

b. The Corporation shall maintain or cause to be maintained a proper record
of all book, notes, securities or other evidences of indebtedness held by the
Corporation for investment and deposit purposes.

c. The Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that
deposits and investments are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized
use or disposition, that transactions are executed in accordance with
management's authorization and recorded properly, and are managed in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

1 Designation of Depositories
The Corporation shall designate as depositories of its money those banks and trust
companies authorized to serve as such pursuant to applicable law.
B. Investment Policy
1. Permitted Investments

Pursuant to the Not-For-Profit Corporation Law (“N-PCL”), the Corporation is
authorized to invest moneys not required for immediate expenditure for terms not
to exceed its projected cash flow needs in the following types of investments:

a.

b.

Special time deposit accounts;*
Certificates of deposit;*
Obligations of the United States of America;**

Obligations guaranteed by agencies of the United States of America where
payment of principal and interest are guaranteed by the United States of

America;**
Obligations of the State of New York;*

*Special time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit are permitted

investments provided that (1) they shall be payable within such time as the proceeds
shall be needed to meet expenditures for which the moneys were obtained and (2)

-30-



JCCFDC Investment Policy
3

they are collateralized in the same manner as set forth in paragraph (C) below for
deposits of public funds.

**All investment obligations shall be payable or redeemable at the option
of the Corporation within such times as the proceeds will be needed to meet
expenditures for purposes for which the moneys were provided and, in the case of
obligations purchased with the proceeds of bonds or notes, shall be payable or
redeemable at the option of the Corporation within two years of the date of
purchase.

Authorized Financial Institutions and Dealers

The Corporation shall maintain a list of financial institutions and dealers, approved
for investment purposes and establish appropriate limits to the amount of
investments which can be made with each financial institution or dealer. All
financial institutions with which the local government conducts business must be
credit worthy. Banks shall provide their most recent Consolidated Report of
Condition (Call Report) at the request of the Corporation. Security dealers not
affiliated with a bank shall be required to be classified as reporting dealers affiliated
with the New York Federal Reserve Bank, as primary dealers. The Chief Executive
Officer or Chairperson of the Board of Directors is responsible for evaluating the
financial position and maintaining a listing of proposed depositaries, trading
partners and custodians. Such listing shall be evaluated at least annually.

Purchase of Investments

The Corporation may contract for the purchase of investments:

a. Directly, including through a repurchase agreement, from an authorized
trading partner.
b. By participation in a cooperative investment program with another

authorized governmental entity pursuant to the N-PCL where such program
meets all the requirements set forth in the Office of the State Comptroller
Opinion No. 88-46, and the specific program has been authorized by the
Board of Directors.

(< By utilizing an ongoing investment program with an authorized trading
partner pursuant to a contract authorized by the board of Directors.

All purchased obligations, unless registered or inscribed in the name of the
Corporation, shall be purchased through, delivered to and held in the custody of a
bank or trust company. Such obligations shall be purchased, sold or presented for
redemption or payment by such bank or trust company only in accordance with
prior written authorization from the officer authorized to make the investment. All
such transactions shall be confirmed in writing to the Corporation by the bank or

-31-



JCCFDC Investment Policy
4

trust company shall be held pursuant to a written custodial agreement as described
in the N-PCL.

The custodial agreement shall provide that securities held by the bank or trust
company, as agent of and custodian for, the Corporation, will be kept separate and
apart from the general assets of the custodial bank or trust company and will not,
in any circumstances, be commingled with or become part of the backing for any
other deposit or other liabilities. The agreement shall describe how the custodian
shall confirm the receipt and release of the securities. Such agreement shall include
all provisions necessary to provide the Corporation a perfected interest in the

securities.
Repurchase Agreements
Repurchase agreements are authorized subject to the following restrictions:

a. All repurchase agreements must be entered into subject to a Master
Repurchase Agreement.

b Trading partners are limited to banks or trust companies authorized to do
business in New York State and primary reporting dealers.

¢ Obligations shall be limited to obligations of the United States of America
and obligations guaranteed by agencies of the United States of America.

d. No substitution of securities will be allowed.

e. The custodian shall be a party other than the trading partner.

C. Deposit Policy

1.

 Collateralization of Deposits

All deposits of the Corporation, including certificates of deposit and special time
deposits, in excess of the amount insured under the provisions of the Federal
Deposit Insurance Act shall be secured:

a. By pledge of “eligible securities” with an aggregate “market value” as
provided by the N-PCL, equal to the aggregate amount of deposits from the
categories designated in Exhibit A attached hereto.

b. By an eligible “irrevocable letter of credit” issued by a qualified bank other

than the bank with the deposits in favor of the Corporation for a term not to
exceed ninety (90) days with an aggregate value equal to 140% of the

-32-



JCCFDC Investment Policy
5

aggregate amount of deposits and the agreed upon interest, if any. A
qualified bank is one whose commercial paper and other unsecured short-
term debt obligations are rated in one of the three highest rating categories
by at least on nationally recognized statistical rating organization or by a
bank that is in compliance with applicable federal minimum risk-based
capital requirements.

(A By an eligible surety bond payable to the Corporation for an amount at least
equal to 100% of the aggregate amount of deposits and the agreed upon
interest, if any, executed by an insurance company authorized to do business
in New York State, whose claims-paying ability is rated in the highest rating
category by at least two nationally recognized statistical rating
organizations. The terms and conditions of any eligible surety shall be
approved by the Board of Directors.

Safekeeping and Collateralization

Eligible securities used for collateralizing deposits shall be held by the depository
bank or trust company subject to security and custodial agreements.

The security agreement shall provide that eligible securities are being pledged to
secure Corporation deposits together with agreed upon interest, if any and any costs
or expenses arising out of the collection of such deposits upon default. It shall also
provide the conditions under which the securities may be sold, presented for
payment, substituted or released and the events, which will enable the Corporation
to exercise its rights against the pledged securities. In the event that the securities
are not registered or inscribed in the name of the Corporation, such securities shall
be delivered in a form suitable for transfer or with an assignment in blank to the
Corporation or its custodial bank.

The custodial agreement shall provide that securities held by the bank or trust
company, or agent of and custodian for, the Corporation, will be kept separate and
apart from the general assets of the custodial bank or trust company and will not,
in any circumstances, be commingled with or become part of backing for any other
deposit or other liabilities. The agreement should also describe that the custodian
shall confirm the receipt, substitution or release of the securities. The agreement
shall provide for the frequency of revaluation of eligible securities and for the
substitution of securities when a change in the rating of a security may cause
ineligibility. Such agreement shall include all provisions necessary to provide the
Corporation a perfected interest in the securities.

-33-



JCCFDC Investment Policy
6

A-1
EXHIBIT A

SCHEDULE OF ELIGIBLE SECURITIES

(1) Obligations issued, or fully insured or guaranteed as to the payment of principal and interest
by the United States of America, an Agency thereof or a United States government sponsored

corporation.

(2) Obligations issued or fully guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and
Development, the Inter-American Development Bank, the Asian Development Bank and the
African Development Bank.,

(3) Obligations partially insured or guaranteed by any Corporation of the United States of
America, at a proportion of the Market Value of the obligation that represents the amount of the

insurance or guaranty.

(4) Obligations issued or fully insured or guaranteed by the State of New York, obligations issued
by a municipal corporation, school district or district corporation or such State or obligations of
any public benefit corporation which under a specific State statute may be accepted as security for

deposit of public moneys.

(5) Obligations issued by states (other than the State of New York) of the United States rated in
one of the three highest rating categories by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating

organization.

(6) Obligations of Puerto Rico rated in one of the three highest rating categories by at least one
nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

(7) Obligations of countries, cities and other governmental entities of a state other than the State
of New York having the power to levy taxes that are backed by the full faith and credit of such
governmental entity and rated in one of the three highest categories by at least one nationally
recognized statistical rating organization.

(8) Obligations of domestic corporations rated one of the two highest rating categories by at least
one nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

(9) Any mortgage related securities, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, which may be purchased by banks under the limitations established by bank regulatory

agencies.

(10) Commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances issued by a bank, other than the Bank, rated in
the highest short term category by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization
and having maturities of not longer than 60 days from the date they are pledged.

(11) Zero Coupon obligations of the United States government marketed as “Treasury strips”.

-34-



JCCFDC Investment Policy
7

JEFFERSON COUNTY CIVIC FACILITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
FINANCIAL INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
Adopted 5/3/2012 — Reviewed+041/20Proposed 11/4/21

These procedures are developed to provide an internal control structure to preserve the assets of
the organization. Procedures shall be reviewed at least annually by the independent auditors who
will make recommendations to the Board of Directors for suggested changes. Interim changes
may be recommended by management: however, such changes shall not be implemented until
approved by independent auditors and the board.

The following are daily procedures for processing cash receipts and disbursements:

CASH RECEIPTS:

The Office-AssistantFinance Assistant or Executive Assistant shall open the daily mail and enter
all cash payments in the accounting system. He/she shall make copies of the checks received and
file same in the folder for the proper application of the payment.

Weekly, or as needed, the Chief Financial Officer_or Finance Assistant shall prepare the bank
deposit.

The Executive Assistant or Office-AssistantFinance Assistant shall make all deposits.

The Chief Financial Officer shall be responsible assuring that all cash/checks are locked in the
safe prior to deposit.

Upon completion of the deposit the Chief Financial Officer or Office-AssistantFinance Assistant
shall enter the deposit into the daily cash receipts record, and post the payments to the proper
G/L accounts. A separate record is made of all checks posted, and is compared to checks
received (by the Office-AssistantFinance Assistant or Executive Assistant).

Discrepancies between checks received and posted shall be investigated at once and reported to
the Chief Executive Officer if not reconciled.

All loan payments shall be entered on the appropriate amortization schedule with the date
received.

All bank accounts shall be reconciled monthly and must agree with the General Ledger.
Bank accounts shall be reconciled by the Offiee-AssistantFinance Assistant and approved by the
Chief Executive Officer, Treasurer or Chief Financial Officer.

CASH DISBURSEMENTS:

All purchases must be made according to the procurement policy. Procurement Policies must be
reviewed annually and approved by the Board of Directors.

-35-



JCCFDC Investment Policy
8

All invoices received shall be reviewed by the Chief Financial Officer and verified for accuracy
and completeness. The Office-AssistantFinance Assistant or Chief Financial Officer shall code
all invoices and enter them in the system as payables. The Chief Financial Officer shall review

all invoices prior to payment.

All invoices must be approved and properly initialed by an authorized signer prior to payment.
Prior to filing paid invoices the Office-AssistantFinance Assistant will review all invoices for
required information; missing information must be complete prior to filing.

All reimbursement for expense reports must be audited by the Chief Financial Officer and
approved by the Chief Executive Officer prior to payment. Complete detail of expenses and
mileage reimbursement, with receipts must be provided. Mileage reimbursement shall be at the
IRS approved rate. Expenses in excess of $25.00 must have receipts, unless approved by the
Chief Executive Officer or Treasurer.

The Chief Executive Officers expense report shall be audited by the Chief Financial Officer and
approved by the Board Treasurer prior to issuing check. The Chief Executive Officer must
provide a separate business mileage record to the Chief Financial Officer monthly.

Checks in an amount greater than $1,000 require two authorized signatures. Authorized signers
shall be approved by the Board of Directors.

The Chief Financial Officer will not be an authorized signer.

Checks less than $1,000 will require only one signature by an authorized signer of the
corporation.

An authorized signer may not sign his/her check for reimbursement of approved travel, unless
signed by a second officer of the corporation.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Financial statements and supporting schedules shall be prepared monthly by the Chief Financial
Officer or Finance Assistant in a format approved by the Board of Directors.

A standard Income Statement and Balance Sheet with the following supporting schedules will be
provided:

Miscellaneous Receivables

Cash Disbursements

Cash Receipts- General Account
Unrestricted Aged Payables

Detailed Activity on All loan Funds
Special reports as requested by the board.

-36-



JCCFDC Investment Policy
9

General Ledger accounts to be reconciled on an ongoing basis.

All Financial Statements shall be reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer or Treasurer prior to
presentation to the board.

All investment of funds must be in accordance with investment policies. Investment activities
shall be reported to the board monthly. All investment decisions must have the Chief Executive
Officers approval after review for compliance with current investment policies.

The Chief Financial Officer will provide a monthly detail of investments to include maturity date
and percentage return.

-37-



JCCFDC Committee Structure

2021-2022
Executive Committee: Governance Committee:
Chairman — Robert E. Aliasso, Jr. W. Edward Walldroff, Chair
Vice Chairman — John Jennings Bill Johnson
Treasurer — Paul Warneck Paul Warneck

Secretary — W. Edward Walldroff
Immediate Past Chairman — David Converse

Loan Review Committee: Nominating Committee:
David Converse, Chair Lisa L’Huillier, Chair
John Jennings Bill Johnson

Robert E. Aliasso, Jr. John Jennings

Christine Powers

Kent Burto

Audit/Finance Committee:
John Jennings, Chair

David Converse

Paul Warneck

Rob Aiken

-38-



Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

2020-2021

Criteria

Agree

Somewhat
Agree

Somewhat
Disagree

Disagree

Board members have a shared understanding
of the mission and purpose of the Authority.

6

1

The policies, practices and decisions of the
Board are always consistent with this mission.

T

Board members comprehend their role and
fiduciary responsibilities and hold themselves
and each other to these principles.

6

The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and
practices for the effective governance,
management and operations of the Authority
and reviews these annually.

The Board sets clear and measurable
performance goals for the Authority that
contribute to accomplishing its mission.

The decisions made by Board members are
arrived at through independent judgment and
deliberation, free of political influence or self-
interest.

Individual Board members communicate
effectively with executive staff so as to be well
informed on the status of all important issues.

Board members are knowledgeable about the
Authority’s programs, financial statements,
reporting requirements, and other transactions.

The Board meets to review and approve all
documents and reports prior to public release
and is confident that the information being
presented is accurate and complete.

10

The Board knows the statutory obligations of
the Authority and if the Authority is in
compliance with state law.

11

Board and committee meetings facilitate open,
deliberate and thorough discussion, and the
active participation of members.

12

Board members have sufficient opportunity to
research, discuss, question and prepare before
decisions are made and votes taken.

13

Individual Board members feel empowered to
delay votes, defer agenda items, or table
actions if they feel additional information or
discussion is required.

14

The Board exercises appropriate oversight of
the CEO and other executive staff, including
setting performance expectations and
reviewing performance annually.

15

The Board has identified the areas of most risk
to the Authority and works with management to
implement risk mitigation strategies before
problems occur,

16

Board members demonstrate leadership and
vision and work respectfully with each other.

Name of Authority: Jefferson County Civic Facility Development Corporation

Date Completed:

-39



jussqy - v

pasnaxg - 3

Juasald - d

:S|Bj01

Ined ‘“yoaulepn

PIEMPI "M ‘TIOJPIIEM

~ BsIq deyjlinH,

weey[jip ‘uosuyop

- uyor ‘sbuiuuap

piAeQ ,mm..mh.a:ou

oo Wlo|of o) o) ©

usqoy ‘osselly

dag

Bny

inp

unp

Aepy

1dy =T ER

uep

J8Q

AON

120

aleN

"di0D 'dojeneq Ayoe4 21mQ AHunog uosiayar

8JuepusnYy pieog gz0oz-1z0z

(c985-28/-G1€)
LO9EL AN ‘Umolaiepn

008 8)ns ‘anuaAy ongJels 008

-40-



